
Minutes 11/16/21 ZBA 
 

1 

Town of Sand Lake 
Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 

November 16, 2021 
 
The minutes, as follows, are intended to provide a general summary of the Agenda items and Public 
Hearings.  Quotes presented are not verbatim, nor is all discussion which occurred presented herein.  This 
document should not be relied upon as a transcript or the actual proceedings.  The transcript of this 
meeting is on a digital voice recorder and available at the Town Hall. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  Melissa Toni opened the meeting at 7:00 PM 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Geraldine Burger 

Scott Bendett 
    Amy Lent 
    Wayne Gendron 
    Craig Crist, Esq. 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   
 
OTHERS PRESENT: William Glasser, Frances Bossolini, PE, Monica Ryan (Town Planner) 
 
RECORDING CLERK:  Laura Fedoreshenko, Clerk for Planning Board and ZBA 
 
Melissa Toni (MT) explained the process for the following Area Variance applications.   
 
Area Variance Application 
Thomas & Michelle Darling (Applicant)    Tax Map #:  169.2-2-19.2 
113 Second Dyke Road      
Averill Park, NY 12018      Lot Size:  .26 acres 
R-Residential Zoning District      
 
An Area Variance application for insufficient front and side yard setbacks for the replacement of a single-
family dwelling with flood damage.   
 
Surveyor William Glasser presented and stated that the Darling’s home had severe flooding because of 
the July 2021 storm; thus, the applicants wished to tear down the existing building, bring in 2-3’ of fill and 
build a new one-story single-family home with attached garage.  A map reflecting the layout for the 
existing home with an overlay of the proposed new home was viewed.  Mr. Glasser explained that the 
proposed home would have a greater offset on the lakeside of the property however the front setback 
and side yard setback (where a pond existed) would be reduced which was the reason for the needed 
area variances.  MT noted that it was a tight lot and Mr. Glasser agreed.  MT stated that an area variance 
for 7’ was requested for the front yard setback and 13.8’ for the side yard setback.  SB asked how the 
neighbor (Mr. Palmer) accessed his home to which Mr. Glasser replied via Glen Royal Drive.  The amount 
of impervious surface was discussed.  Mr. Glasser stated that the proposed home would be 2,700 square 
foot including the garage and covered porch.  He added that an asphalt driveway was also planned and 
noted that part of the proposed asphalt driveway would be outside of the applicant’s property line and 
became an access easement; thus, would not count against the impervious surface on the lot itself.  A 
discussion ensued and it was decided that Mr. Glasser would finalize the impervious surface number to 
ensure it would not exceed the amount allowed based on lot size and then advise the Planning Office prior 
to the next ZBA meeting and Public Hearing for the project.  



Minutes 11/16/21 ZBA 
 

2 

 
With no further questions, MT motioned to schedule the Public Hearing for December 9, 2021 at 7:00pm; 
seconded by Scott Bendett (SB) and all approved.  MT stated that a site visit may be needed, and 
arrangements were made for Board members to visit individually.  
 
Area Variance Application 
Ed Seabury (Applicant)      Tax Map #:  158.4-3-36.3 
Harriman Road Extension 
Averill Park, NY 12018      Lot Size:  1.6 acres 
R-Residential Zoning District      
 
An Area Variance application for insufficient front yard setback for the construction of a single-family 
dwelling.   
 
Engineer Francis Bossolini represented and stated that the property was on the east side of Burden Lake 
and noted that there was a National Grid corridor that ran northwest to southeast.  Mr. Bossolini 
explained that the lot was fairly steep towards the lake and added that the applicant proposed to build a 
single-family home for himself.  A map of the layout was viewed and he explained that due to the 
topography, if the proposed home were to be located to meet the Zoning, closer towards the lake/slope, 
it would involve a lot of trees to be cleared, large amount of fill being added and retaining walls built which 
the applicant was not comfortable with it.  He explained that the alternative considered locating the 
proposed home closer to the front property line which would reduce the impact to the lot as no fill would 
be needed; however, that needed an area variance for a front yard setback of 25’ versus the 50’ required 
by zoning.  Mr. Bossolini added that Harriman Road Extension was a private road versus a public, therefore 
did not have a lot of traffic on it.  He also stated that other homes in the area were viewed and noted that 
an attached garage of a home to the south was approximately 15’ off the edge of the road and another 
home was setback approximately 25-30’ from the right of way.  He also noted that a home across the way 
from this lot was approximately 35’.  Mr. Bossolini stated that Mr. Seabury’s intent was to live year-round 
in the proposed home.  He added that a well would need to be drilled however sewer existed at the street 
for connection.  The garage was discussed, and it was noted that accessory structures were permitted in 
the front yard with a 10’ setback when on a lake.  Mr. Bossolini explained the impervious surface would 
be around 10% and MT noted the lot size as being larger than the previously discussed project.  The map 
layout was viewed, and Mr. Bossolini stated that a small retaining wall would be built at the northeast 
corner to hold up a slope.  He added that with the configuration discussed the existing drainage pattern 
could be maintained.  MT stated she had appreciated the submission of the sketch that reflected the 
amount of grading that would have been required to be within compliance of the Zoning Code.  Mr. 
Bossolini stated that sketch did show the stark difference.  Wayne Gendron (WG) noted that there would 
be a downhill slope from the proposed garage and asked how drainage would be controlled once clearing 
of that area was done.  Mr. Bossolini stated that he had viewed the flow of drainage in the area and 
believed gutters and the addition of a dry well may help to alleviate the issues.   A discussion ensued 
regarding trees to be removed for the location of the proposed garage with respect to drainage and the 
benefits of the existing trees for erosion control.  Mr. Bossolini stated that moving the garage closer to 
the home to avoid some tree removal would be reviewed to help address some of the drainage concerns.  
MT asked what surface was proposed for the driveway.  Mr. Bossolini stated that a final decision had not 
been made on that yet and wished to assume that it would be some sort of paved driveway with the 
drainage taken into consideration.  WG noted that even with the culvert pipes installed, washouts 
continued during times of heavy rain.  MT agreed that mitigated measures be considered to which Mr. 
Bossolini agreed.   
 



Minutes 11/16/21 ZBA 
 

3 

With no further questions, MT motioned to schedule the Public Hearing for December 9, 2021 at 7:00pm; 
seconded by SB and all approved.   
 

APPROVAL OF DRAFT MINUTES 
MT motioned to accept the August 12, 2021 minutes as presented; seconded by SB and all approved. 
MT motioned to accept the September 2, 2021 minutes as presented; seconded by SB and all approved. 
MT Motioned to accept the October 14, 2021 minutes as presented; seconded by SB and approved by 
Geraldine Burger and Amy Lent.  WG recused himself as he was absent for the October 14, 2021 meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
MT motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:26pm; seconded by SB and all approved. 


